
 
MINUTES 

CITY OF NORCO 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2820 CLARK AVENUE 

REGULAR MEETING 
AUGUST 13, 2014 

   

 
CALL TO ORDER:   7:01 PM     
 
ROLL CALL: Chair Hedges, Vice Chair Leonard, Commission Members Hoffman, 
Jaffarian, and Rigler 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Planning Director King, Senior Planner Robles and Deputy City 
Clerk Germain 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Commission Member Hoffman 
 
ELECTION OF NEW CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR: 
M/S Hedges/Hoffman to elect Vice Chair Leonard as Chair for the Planning 
Commission 
AYES: Hedges, Leonard, Hoffman, Jaffarian, Rigler  Motion Passed 
 
M/S Jaffarian/Leonard to elect Member Hoffman as Vice Chair for the Planning 
Commission 
AYES: Hedges, Leonard, Hoffman, Jaffarian, Rigler  Motion Passed 
 
1. APPEAL NOTICE: Read by Planning Director King 
 
2. PUBLIC COMMENTS: NONE 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  

 Minutes of Regular Meeting on July 9, 2014 
Recommended Action: Approval (Deputy City Clerk)  

M/S Hedges/Hoffman to approve the minutes of regular meeting of July 9, 2014 as 
written 
AYES: Leonard, Hoffman, Hedges, Rigler   Motion Passed 
ABSTAIN:  Jaffarian 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
A. Conditional Use Permit 2014-18 (Fielding): A request for approval to allow 

a detached accessory structure consisting of a 1,200 square-foot 
garage/storage building at 1550 Longhorn Way located within the Norco Hills 
Specific Plan. Recommended Action: Approval (Senior Planner) 



 
 
Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 2 
August 13, 2014 
 

 

Planning Director King presented the staff report on file in the Planning Department. He 
stated that upon the Architectural Review Board’s review, it was recommended that the 
accessory building be in the same color as the home. Staff recommends approval. 
 
Chair Leonard OPENED the public hearing, indicating that proper notification had 
been made and asked for the appearance of those wishing to speak.  
 
Barry Fielding, applicant: Mr. Fielding stated that he plans on painting the accessory 
building in the same color as the house and that the storage is for personal items. In 
response to Member Jaffarian, Mr. Fielding confirmed that access is strictly off of 
Longhorn Avenue.  
 
Chair Leonard CLOSED the public hearing, bringing the discussion back to the 
Commission. 
 
Under discussion: Member Jaffarian requested that a condition be added stating that 
there be no access from Norco Hills Road without prior approval by the Planning 
Commission, and if needed, by the Streets, Trails and Utilities Commission.  
 
M/S Jaffarian/Hedges to adopt Resolution 2014-41, to approve Conditional Use Permit 
2014-18, to allow a detached accessory building consisting of a 1,200 square-foot 
garage/storage building at 1550 Longhorn Way, adding a condition noting “no access 
from Norco Hills Road unless approved by Planning Commission, and if necessary, the 
Streets, Trails, and Utility Commission. 
AYES: Leonard, Hoffman, Hedges, Jaffarian, Rigler  Motion Passed 

 
B. Conditional Use Permit 2014-16 (Flores): A request for approval to allow 

four additional animal units at 3260 Corona Avenue located within the A-1-20 
(Agricultural Low Density) Zone. Recommended Action: Continue to 
September 10, 2014 (Senior Planner) 

Senior Planner Robles stated that staff needs additional time to review and work with 
the applicant on his request, therefore this public hearing item is being continued to the 
meeting of September 10, 2014. 
 
5. CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARING: 

 
A. Conditional Use Permit 2014-14 (Gougeon/Andresen): A request for 

approval to allow an accessory building consisting of a 4,000 square-foot 
Recreational Vehicle (RV), personal vehicles and tool storage building at 
1320 Hillkirk Avenue located within the A-1-20 Zone. Continued from July 9, 
2014; Recommended Action: Denial (Senior Planner) 

 
Senior Planner Robles presented the staff report on file in the Planning Department. 
She stated that minimal input/direction was given at the previous Commission meeting. 
She reiterated that the Architectural Review Board had expressed concerns with the 
size. Senior Planner Robles stated that all requirements are met, and although advised 
about the concern over the requested size, the applicant chose to move forward at the 
4,000 square-foot size. Staff is also concerned with the size.   
 



 
 
Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 3 
August 13, 2014 
 

 

Chair Leonard OPENED the public hearing, indicating that proper notification had 
been made and asked for the appearance of those wishing to speak.  
 
Jon Steffen: Mr. Steffen stated that he is a neighbor to the north of the property in 
question, and that he has no concerns with the size of the building.  
 
Doug Andresen, applicant: Mr. Andresen reviewed the plan with the Commission, 
pointed out what is being planned and how the accessory building will sit on the 
property. He stated that the building will not be visible from any angle; all the 
requirements have been met and noted that he shouldn’t be penalized for having a 
small house in comparison. He asked for further direction from the Commission. In 
response to the Commission, Mr. Andresen stated that Hillkirk Avenue is a private street 
with only four homes on the cul-de-sac, and his property butts against a commercial lot. 
He explained why such a sized building is needed, storage of personal items such as an 
RV, car collection, and eventually become a partial barn. 
  
Member Rigler stated that he had visited the lot and although it seems to be a low level 
lot, he is still concerned with the size requested. He noted his concern on the potential 
uses in the future.   
 
In response to Vice Chair Hoffman, Bethany Gougeon, also an applicant, stated that 
she has plans on getting horses soon and that there would be an arena built. She noted 
that they had moved to Norco for a large lot to accommodate all their hobbies, cars and 
horses. 
 
Chair Leonard CLOSED the public hearing, bringing the discussion back to the 
Commission. 
 
Member Hedges stated that although the building size requested is a concern, she 
cannot deny it as all requirements are met.  
 
Member Rigler asked if a title can be added to the property to stop future use of the 
building for manufacturing or similar use.   
 
Vice Chair Hoffman stated that the location is ideal for this size building but has 
concerns for future uses.  
 
Member Jaffarian agreed that due to the lot size the height is not concerning but the 
width is; he recommended to continue to a date specific, and directed the applicants to 
reduce the building by half, keeping in mind that animal keeping is primary in Norco. 
 
Chair Leonard stated that although concerned with the size, he cannot deny the request 
as all requirements are met.  
 
MS Jaffarian/Hoffman to continue this public hearing to date specific, October regular 
meeting, allowing the applicants to redesign the plan based on the Commission’s input.  
AYES: Hedges, Leonard, Hoffman, Jaffarian, Rigler  Motion Passed 
 



 
 
Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 4 
August 13, 2014 
 

 

Mr. Andresen asked if he could appeal to City Council, based on tonight’s comments. 
Director King explained that since a decision has yet to be made by the Commission, an 
appeal to the Council is not yet an option.   
 

B. Conditional Use Permit 2014-06 (Duncan): A request for approval to allow 
an accessory building consisting of a 1,050 square-foot barn at 1456 
Foxtrotter Road located in the Norco Ridge Ranch Specific Plan (NRRSP). 
Continued from July 9, 2014; Recommended Action: Approval (Senior 
Planner) 

Senior Planner Robles presented the staff report on file in the Planning Department.  
Architectural Review Board has reviewed, noting concerns with a metal building that is 
not compatible with existing structures. Staff recommends that the floor remains dirt, 
unless gets prior approval for cement floor from Planning Commission. All requirements 
with conditions are met.  
 
Vice Chair Hoffman questioned the 4-foot bridle path to the primary animal keeping area 
(PAKA), in response, Director King stated there are no standard set by the City and staff 
determined it would be appropriate. Member Hoffman suggested that there be a 
minimum 10-foot path.  
 
Member Rigler noted his concerns as follows, grading of property continues to PAKA, 
barn may take up more of the graded land, driveway to the side of the street, seems 
access to PAKA is blocked.   
 
In response to Chair Hedges, Senior Planner Robles stated that the PAKA is a flat area, 
as noted on the site plan.  
 
Chair Leonard stated his concern that the plans do not look like a barn, more like a 
garage, and does not seem conducive to animal keeping. 
 
Chair Leonard OPENED the public hearing, indicating that proper notification had 
been made and asked for the appearance of those wishing to speak. With no one 
wishing to speak, Chair Leonard CLOSED the public hearing, bringing the 
discussion back to the Commission. 
 
Member Jaffarian suggested that the building should be about 400 square feet, and 
located away from the PAKA as much as possible. He added that the current plan show 
too big of a structure.   
 
Vice Chair Hoffman agreed that the building is too big.  
 
Member Hedges stated that per her observation the plan does not look like it’s a barn, 
adding that even though a condition would be added to keep dirt floor, people pour 
concrete anyway.  
 
M/S Jaffarian/Hedge to deny Conditional Use Permit 2014-06 (Resolution 2014-39) to 
allow an accessory building consisting of a 1,050 square-foot barn at 1456 Foxtrotter 
Road, noting that the applicant need to address access 
AYES: Hedges, Leonard, Hoffman, Jaffarian, Rigler  Motion Passed 



 
 
Planning Commission Minutes 
Page 5 
August 13, 2014 
 

 

 
6. BUSINESS ITEMS:  

 
A. Site Plan 2014-19 (Lavelle): A request for approval to allow an accessory 

building consisting of a 288 square-foot barn at 2507 Lookout Point located 
within the A-1-20 (Agricultural Low-Density) Zone. Recommended Action: 
Approval (Senior Planner) 

Planning director King presented the staff report on file in the Planning Department. He 
stated that all requirements are met. Staff recommends approval.  
 
M/S Jaffarian/Hedges to adopt Resolution 2014-42, to approve Site Plan 2014-19, to 
allow an accessory building consisting of a 288 square-foot barn at 2507 Lookout Point. 
AYES: Hedges, Leonard, Hoffman, Jaffarian, Rigler  Motion Passed 
 
7. CITY COUNCIL MINUTES:     Received and Filed 

 
 City Council Regular Meeting of June 18, 2014 
 City Council Special Meeting of July 2, 2014 
 City Council Regular Meeting of July 16, 2014 

 
8. PLANNING COMMISSION:  
 

A. Oral Reports from Various Committees 
Chair Hedges provided an overview of the recent meeting of the Ad-Hoc Committee for 
Infrastructure.  
 

B. Request for Items on Future Agenda (within the purview of the Commission) 
Member Jaffarian asked staff to prepare a staff report on a means of posting a notice for 
illegal buildings, granny flats, when it has been denied.   

 
Member Hedges asked staff to follow up with the empty lot at corner of Sixth Street and 
Valley View Avenue regarding excessive tumbleweeds.   
 
Vice Chair Hoffman asked for a report to address 40% coverage of PAKAs.   

 
9. ADJOURNMENT: Chair Leonard adjourned the meeting at 8:09 PM 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
_________________________ 
Steve King, Secretary 
Planning Commission 
 
 
/di 


